BRIEF ON BEHALF OF PETITIONER DREAMA BOWDEN, 

AS ADMINISTRATRIX OF THE ESTATE OF LOWELL BOWDEN

I. ASSIGNMENTS OF ERROR 

A. The Circuit Court erred in granting summary judgment because it erroneously 

misstated and misapplied the law regarding the relationship of the Public Duty 

Doctrine and its Special Relationship exception to the law of immunities 

for political sub-divisions. 

B. 	 The Circuit Court erred in granting summary judgment because it misapplied the 

established law prohibiting a Circuit Court from performing credibility 

determinations and weighing evidence when deciding a motion for summary 

judgment. 

C. 	 The Circuit Court erred in granting summary judgment because it misapplied the 

established law governing summary judgment by failing to a consider the totality 

ofthe evidence presented in the light most favorable to the non-moving party. 

D. The Circuit Court erred in granting summary judgment because it erroneously 

held that the meeting between Mr. and Mrs. Bowden and Ms. Green "would not 

amount to an assumption of a duty to act on behalf ofPlaintiff' because such is a 

question of fact for the jury. 

E. 	 The Circuit Court erred in granting summary judgment because it erroneously 

found that the Petitioner does not present evidence to support that Respondents 

had knowledge that inaction would lead to harm. 

F. 	 The Circuit Court erred in granting summary judgment because it erroneously 

found that "[t]he only evidence presented by the Plaintiff is her own testimony, 
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and under the standard for summary judgment established in Gooch v. W. Va. 

Dep't ofPub. Safety, this mere scintilla of evidence is not sufficient." AND 

"Plaintiff has not proven direct contact between the Defendants and the decedent 

prior to the attack on the decedent." 

G. 	 The Circuit Court erred in entering a Dismissal Order on June 2,2016, after 

finding that there was "nothing remaining to be done" because the Order granting 

summary judgment did not adjudicate all counts against Respondents. 

II. STATEMENT OF THE CASE 

This appeal primarily involves the granting of a motion for summary judgment under 

Rule 56 of the West Virginia Rules of Civil Procedure. As such, the focus of the Court must be 

on whether there is a genuine issue as to any material fact and whether the moving party was 

entitled to judgment as a matter oflaw. Floyd v. Equitable Life Assurance Soc'y, 164 W. Va. 

661,264 S.E.2d 648 (1980). Under the applicable law, the Circuit Court was obliged to both 

consider and draw permissible inferences from all underlying facts in the light most favorable to 

the Petitioner. Williams v. Precision Coil, 194 W. Va. 52,59,459 S.E.2d 329, 336 (1995). The 

Circuit Court failed to do both, while demonstrating a lack ofunderstanding regarding the 

substantive law of immunities which is central to the case. 

This is a wrongful death action which involves an attack by a pack ofAmerican Pit Bull 

Terriers ("Pit Bulls") on Lowell Bowden, while he was taking a walk in his neighborhood. Mr. 

Bowden was mauled by the vicious dogs, having most ofhis face, scalp and neck, including both 

ofhis ears and one eye, eaten off. He lived for seven days after the attack, until he succumbed to 

his injuries. The Respondents are two of the remaining defendants: Monroe County Commission 
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("MCC") and Animal Control Officer Patricia Green ("Ms. Green"), both individually and in her 

official capacity. 

Ms. Green had worked as a housekeeper for several decades at the Greenbrier before she 

was hired by the MCC to be Monroe County's Animal Control Officer. Without any prior 

experience as a dog warden, Ms. Green responded to an ad for the job, attached a letter of 

interest and was hired by MCC without formal application or interview. At the time ofher hire, 

MCC did not give Ms. Green any training or formal instruction, she was not given any written 

job duties or responsibilities, nor was she offered any explanation of the statutory requirements 

of the Animal Control Officer position. Ms. Green's husband accompanied her on her animal 

control calls. (Green Dep. 10:1-14:24, Record at 286-287). 

In 2006, Lowell Bowden moved with his wife Dreama Bowden into a home in the 

Lindside area ofMonroe County, West Virginia. Mr. Bowden grew accustomed to taking walks 

through his Lindside neighborhood along Broyles Cemetery Road. Mr. Bowden generally 

followed the same course for his daily walk, a route that passed the Blankenship property. 

(Bowden Dep. 12:13-14; 38:5-39:11, Record at 362-364). 

The Blankenship family was known for allowing their dogs to run free throughout the 

neighborhood. Their dogs frequently caused problems for their neighbors, and were the source 

ofcomplaints made to the Monroe County Animal Control. (See generally Record at 379-394). 

In fact, Ms. Green stated that the Blankenship's were the biggest problem she had. (Green Dep. 

42-44 Record at 290). On January 26,2007, a dog owned by the Blankenship family bit a child 

in the neighborhood. The child's father, Phillip Hunt, called 911. Acting within the scope ofher 

employment, Animal Control Officer Patricia Green responded, but failed to take any remedial 

measures to protect the neighborhood from the biting dog. Ms. Green neither seized the dog, nor 
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issued a citation. (Hunt Testimony 14:22-17:8, Record at 397-400; Hunt Statement, Record at 

379-381; Green Admission Nos. 4 & 5, Record at 408-409, 505-506). 

Despite one of their dogs biting a child, the Blankenships continued to allow their dogs, 

including their Pit Bulls, to roam the neighborhood. In fact, many neighbors were so bothered 

by the Pit Bulls' frightening and aggressive behavior that complaints were made to Monroe 

County regarding the frequent and intimidating attacks on horses, cattle, cats, dogs, children and 

even adults: 

• 	 Phillip Hunt, whose son was bitten in 2007, stated that Pit Bulls growled and barked 

at children playing in his yard on Easter of2009. On July 3, 2009, Mr. Hunt's son 

had to shoot at Pit Bulls with a BB gun as he ran scared into the house. On October 

2,2009, Pit Bulls growled aggressively and barked at Mr. Hunt's truck while one of 

the Pit Bulls jumped up and attacked the truck. Mr. Hunt believed there was nothing 

he could do about the roaming Pit Bulls because Animal Control had done nothing in 

response to his dog bite complaint in 2007. On November 8,2009, Mr. Hunt was 

attacked again by a Pit Bull while in his car. Record at 399-400. 

• 	 Danielle Kast stated a black and white Pit Bull "came after" her on her porch, making 

her afraid to go outside. Record at 382-383, 393. 

• 	 Donald Crawford stated two black and white Pit Bulls were in his barn, growling, one 

week before the attack on Lowell Bowden. Record at 384. 

• 	 Kristina Belcher stated a black and white Pit Bull came after her. On a separate 

occasion, a black and white Pit Bull came after Ms. Belcher while she was with her 

three-year-old nephew and a puppy. She had to pick up the boy and the puppy and 

run inside. Ms. Belcher called Monroe County twice about the dog. Record at 385. 
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• 	 Dustin Kast stated a black and white Pit Bull "came after" his dogs, wife and oldest 

son. Mr. Kast called animal control several times. Record at 386. 

• 	 Jason Browles stated that on September 19,2008, a black and white Pit Bull snuck up 

on him, growling and baring its teeth, when he went to the mailbox. He filed a 

complaint with Animal Control. Record at 387-388. 

• 	 Ashley Clowers stated that on September 19,2008, a black and white Pit Bull came 

after her and her daughter, growling. Ms. Clowers also saw a black and white Pit 

Bull running loose in Lisa Deskins' yard the week ofNovember 20,2009. Record at 

389-391. 

• 	 Charles Larew stated a black and white Pit Bull confronted his cattle during the 

spring of2009. Mr. Larew spoke with Justin Blankenship, called the sheriff and Ms. 

Green responded. Record at 392. 

• 	 Krissy Belcher stated that on September 5, 2008, a black and white Pit Bull chased 

her, her cousin and a child. Record at 393. 

• 	 Heather Gregory stated a black and white Pit Bull lunged and growled at her and her 

boyfriend on more than one occasion. Record at 393. 

• 	 Tammy Blankenship stated that a black and white Pit Bull killed her cats. 

• 	 Mark Crooks filed a complaint about a black and white Pit Bull on November 8, 

2009. The response to this complaint is discussed in greater detail below. Record at 

436-437. 

• 	 Steven Crawford saw a pack ofPit Bulls around a barn on November 24,2009. Mr. 

Crawford told his daughter that he believed there would be trouble related to these 

dogs. Record at 421-422 and Record at attached CD. 
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(Also see generally Record at 379-394; Hunt Testimony 14:22-17:8, Record at 397-400; Green 

Admissions Nos. 1-15 Record at 407-413; Crawford Testimony 11 :19-12:12 Record at 421

422). Ms. Green responded to the complaints mentioned above, and was thereby made aware of 

the Pit Bulls' pattern of aggressive and threatening behavior. Ms. Green, however, negligently 

failed to take any affirmative remedial action to protect this neighborhood from the Pit Bulls. 

(See generally Record at 379-394; Hunt Testimony 14:22-17:8 Record at 379-400; Green 

Admissions Nos. 1-15 Record at 407-413; Green Answer to Interrogatory No.4 Record at 403

405). 

As far back as 2007, Pit Bulls from the Blankenship residence came onto the Bowden's 

property nearly every day. The dogs would enter the yard, bark, growl, bare their teeth and 

position themselves in aggressive postures toward Mr. and Mrs. Bowden. It was difficult for the 

Bowdens to get the dogs to leave their yard. A neighbor would frequently contact Mrs. Bowden 

to warn her that the Pit Bulls were loose in the neighborhood. (Bowden Dep. 46: 1 0-51:6 Record 

at 365-370). 

In addition to the black and white Pit Bull known as Echo, Justin Blankenship had three 

younger black and white Pit Bulls, and one brown female Pit Bull named Sadie. The younger 

dogs began to roam the neighborhood with Echo and Sadie during 2009. (See generally Record 

at 379-394; Ludwig Dep. 19:17-21 :16 Record at 306-308; Crawford Testimony, 11 :19-12:12, 

Record at 421-422). When this pack ofPit Bulls began entering the Bowden's property, Mr. and 

Mrs. Bowden became afraid for their safety and called Animal Control. The couple spoke with 

Ms. Green. Ms. Green came to the Bowden's home several days later to respond to their verbal 

complaint. (Bowden Dep. 55:15-59:22 Record at 371-375). 
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When Ms. Green met with the Bowdens at their home, several weeks prior to Mr. 

Bowden's attack, she did so in her official capacity as the Animal Control Officer for Monroe 

County and as a representative of the Monroe County Commission. Acting within the scope of 

her employment, Ms. Green assured Mr. and Mrs. Bowden that the problem of the Pit Bulls 

roaming unrestrained throughout the neighborhood would be addressed and that the County 

would take care of it. Based on this assurance, the Bowdens believed that Monroe County and 

Ms. Green would do what had been promised: ensure that the Pit Bulls were no longer free to 

terrorize the neighborhood. The Bowdens relied on this assurance and believed that it was safe 

for Lowell to continue to walk along Broyles Cemetery Road. (Bowden Dep. 55: 15-59:22, 91 :6

93:7 Record at 371-375 and 376-378). 

On November 4,2009, Ms. Green called Justin Blankenship about one ofhis black and 

white Pit Bulls. Her handwritten notes indicate that she asked Mr. Blankenship to pen and chain 

the Pit Bull. He agreed to do so. (Animal Control Expense Sheet dated November 8, 2009, 

Record at 505-506). 

Despite Mr. Blankenship's assurance to Ms. Green that he would confine his dog four 

days earlier, one ofhis Pit Bulls was loose and roaming on Mark Crooks' property on November 

8,2009. The dog acted aggressively at Mr. Crooks and would not allow him to exit his vehicle. 

Mr. Crooks called Animal Control to file a complaint. Ms. Green responded, along with her 

husband. After Ms. Green spoke with Mr. Crooks, the Pit Bull appeared and began to attack the 

Greens as they sat in their vehicle. The Pit Bull barked and growled while he jumped up on the 

Green's truck. In deposition, Ms. Green admitted that both she and her husband were frightened 

by the attack that night. Asked what she would have done if she had met the Pit Bull outside of 

her vehicle, she responded that she did not know. (Green Statements Record at 436-440; Green 
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Dep. 94:11-95:18; 97:15-98:12 Record at 359-360; Green Answers to Interrogatories, No. 4:4, 

Record at 403-405). 

Although she was on site for the sole purpose of responding to a vicious dog complaint, 

Ms. Green did nothing to try to seize the dog. In fact, despite responding to numerous past 

complaints about Blankenship Pit Bull(s), she arrived at the Crooks' property ill-equipped to 

even attempt to confiscate the dog. Ms. Green admitted that the only equipment she had with her 

on the call was a can ofmace and a snare. There was no crate loaded into the vehicle. With no 

realistic means to catch or take custody of the dog, Ms. Green allowed the Pit Bull to run off 

after her frightening encounter. (Green Dep 94:11-95:18 Record at 359). 

Ms. Green then left the Crooks' property and proceeded to the Blankenship residence. 

For the second time in four days, Ms. Green spoke with Mr. Blankenship about the Pit Bull. Ms. 

Green issued Mr. Blankenship a citation for harboring a vicious dog. Mr. Blankenship kept four 

ofhis Pit Bulls in an outside enclosure adjacent to the residence, and in direct view of the home's 

parking area. During the Green's visit, this open and obvious pen would have been easily seen 

from the Green's truck. Ms. Green did not wait for Echo to come back to the Blankenship's 

property before she departed the neighborhood. Instead, she negligently relied on Mr. 

Blankenship's assurance (1) that his mother would locate and bring the Pit Bull home and (2) 

that he would restrain the dog to prevent it from roaming the neighborhood. Ms. Green and her 

husband departed the property knowing that the vicious Pit Bull was still on the loose! and 

despite the fact that Mr. Blankenship had already failed to restrain the Pit Bull after promising to 

do so just four days earlier. (Green Dep. 95:19-96:15 Record at 359; Animal Control Expense 

Sheet dated November 8, 2009 Record at 505-506). 

J A Pit Bull that had already attacked and frightened Ms. Green that same evening. (Record at 359). 
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Ms. Green has contradicted herself about whether she was aware that Justin Blankenship 

had more than one Pit Bull. (Green Statements Record at 436-440). In written discovery, she 

stated that "Ms. Green was previously aware that Mr. Blankenship kept dogs similar to the ones 

involved in the attack at his residence." (Green Answers to Interrogatories, No. 5:b Record at 

406). A conscientious Animal Control Officer would easily have noticed the pen where the 

young Pit Bulls and Sadie were kept - which was in plain sight of the Blankenship driveway 

where the Greens sat in their truck on November 8, 2009. (photo Record at 441). It is 

noteworthy that Ms. Green has given at least/our different versions ofthe events of November 8, 

2009 and has conveniently changed her position on whether or not she knew that Justin 

Blankenship was housing multiple Pit Bulls. (Green Statements Record at 436-440; Green Dep. 

90:9-15,94:11-95:18; 97:15-98:12 Record at 358-360; Green Answers to Interrogatories, No. 

5:b Record at 406). 

The citation issued to Mr. Blankenship on November 8, 2009, required that the Pit Bull 

be restrained. (Citation issued November 8, 2009 Record at 507). The citation's restraint 

requirement was essential to the safety ofboth the neighborhood, generally, and the Bowdens 

specifically - who had recently complained to Ms. Green about this very dog and were relying 

on her promise to take care of the problem. (Record at 371). Mr. Blankenship'S compliance 

with the citation's condition of restraint was critical to the area's safety. (Record at 435). In 

fact, Ms. Green's own terrorizing encounter with the Pit Bull gave her actual notice, and to any 

reasonable person, the gravity of the danger posed by the Pit Bull to the community. In 

deposition, however, Ms. Green insisted that she simply could not remember if she had returned 

to the Blankenship property after November 8th to verify whether the Pit Bull was being kept 

restrain~. In similar fashion, Ms. Green also conveniently claims that she does not remember 
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going to the Bowden's home and discussing their concerns about the Pit Bulls. (Green Dep. 

48:5-49:23,87:21-23 Record at 353 and 357). 

On November 27,2009, Lowell Bowden went for a walk. Believing that Ms. Green had 

carried out her promise to take care of the problem of the Pit Bulls being allowed to roam free, 

Mr. Bowden proceeded on his usual route. Suddenly and without opportunity to protect himself, 

Lowell was attacked by five Pit Bulls and was overcome. The Pit Bulls dragged him to the 

ground and proceeded to bite and maul him beyond recognition. Mr. Bowden was left covered 

in blood, with large portions ofhis flesh, scalp and hair having been torn offhis chest, neck, face 

and head by the dogs. (Crawford Testimony 5:1-9:7 Record at 406-420; Hunt Testimony 18:9

19 Record at 401). 

Neighbor Steven Crawford and his daughter, driving in their truck, came upon the attack 

while it was in progress. Mr. Crawford had a firearm and was able to get the dogs away from 

Mr. Bowden. The dogs retreated to the Blankenship property, leaving Mr. Bowden covered in 

his own blood and mutilated to the extent that it was difficult for his friends and neighbors to 

identify him. (Crawford Testimony 5:1-9:7 Record at 416-420; Crawford audio statement to 

Officer Heller Record at CD attached; Hunt Testimony 18:9-19 Record at 401).2 The paramedic 

transportation records indicate that Mr. Bowden had "massive facial trauma" with a "total 

degloving" ofhis scalp and ears - which were missing. Mr. Bowden's left eye was either 

missing or embedded in his facial tissue. He also had multiple teeth puncture wounds scattered 

on all ofhis extremities. (EMS Report Record at 443-454). 

Mr. Blankenship heard the commotion at the end of his driveway and proceeded to the 

road to investigate. When he arrived on the scene, the neighbors began yelling at him about his 

2 During the criminal investigation of Lowell Bowden's mauling, Officer Heller created an audio recording of his 
interview with Steven Crawford on November 28,2009. 
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dogs saying that "all of them" had just attacked Mr. Bowden. It is significant that the neighbors 

shouted "all of them" at Mr. Blankenship, which would include "Echo", the Blankenship Pit Bull 

most familiar to the neighborhood residents. (Crawford audio statement to Officer Heller 

Record at CD attached). 

Paramedics, police and Animal Control Officer Ms. Green responded to the scene. The 

Pit Bulls were in the custody and care of Mr. Blankenship for at least 35 minutes, the 

approximate time-frame from when the dogs ran home after the attack until the authorities seized 

the animals. The police then photographed the younger Pit Bulls in their pen and allowed Mr. 

Blankenship to crate the dogs in the back ofMs. Green's truck. The five Pit Bulls were taken to 

a local veterinarian's office. All of the dogs were later euthanized at the direction of the County. 

Mr. Bowden was taken directly to Giles Memorial Hospital. Given the extent ofhis 

injuries, he was immediately air-lifted to Roanoke Memorial Hospital. He lived for seven days 

following the attacks, disfigured, and sedated, with his head completely bandaged. Mr. Bowden 

succumbed to the severity ofhis injuries and died on December 4,2009. (Roanoke Memorial 

Hospital Record and Medical Examiner's Report Record at 455-465). 

III. SUMMARY OF ARGUMENT 

The Circuit Court erred in granting summary judgment because it erroneously misstated 

and misapplied the law regarding the relationship of the Public Duty Doctrine and its Special 

Relationship exception to the law of immunities for political subdivisions. The law is well

established on immunity claims by political subdivisions. In fact, this Court has already set forth 

that law in the appellate record of this very case. The Court below repeatedly states that the 
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Public Duty Doctrine destroys immunity for a political subdivision, when precisely the opposite 

is true. When applicable, the Public Duty Doctrine is a shield to liability. 

The Circuit Court also misapplied long-established standards to be followed when 

considering a Motion for Summary Judgment. In the Order granting summary judgment, the 

Circuit Court evaluated witness credibility and weighed evidence. The Circuit Court also failed

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