No. 16-0597 

IN THE SUPREME COURT OF APPEALS OF WEST VIRGINIA 


DREAMA BOWDEN, AS ADMINISTRATRIX OF THE 

ESTATEOF LOWELL BOWDEN, 


Petitioner and Plaint~fJbelow. 

v. 

MONROE COUNTY COMMISSION, A POLITICAL SUBDIVISION; 

AND PATRICIA GREEN, INDIVIDUALLY 


AND IN HER OFFICIAL CAPACITY, 

Respondents and Defendants below. 

RESPONDENTS MONROE COUNTY COMMISSION AND PATRICIA GREEN'S 
RESPONSE TO PETITIONER DREAMA BOWDEN'S PETITION FOR APPEAL 

TO: THE HONORABLE JUSTICES OF THE SUPREME COURT OF APPEALS OF WEST 
VIRGINIA 

Respondents and Defendants below, the Monroe County Commission and Patricia Green,

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

discovery in this matter concerning Echo. Philip Hunt's written statement, dated January 13, 2010, 

consists of three (3) occasions where Echo, and other identified dogs, "barked" and "growled" at 

him, his children or his vehicle. Appendix at 379-381). His statements are consistent with the 

testimony he provided during the criminal trial of Kimberly Blankenship, which did not include any 

reports of a physical attack on him or other members of his family. (Appendix at 395-401). As is 

shown in the record, Mr. Hunt did not report the "barking" or "growling" events involving Echo to 

Respondent Green or anyone else associated with Respondent Monroe County Commission. Id. 

The statement of Danielle Kast is not dated, does not indicate when the incidences discussed 

therein occurred, and does not indicate that any report was made to the Respondents regarding the 

same. (Appendix at pg. 382-383). Further, her statement concerned only one (1) dog, the black and 

white pit bull known as Echo. Id. The statement ofDonald Crawford was obtained on November 28, 

2009, which is after the subject attack on Lowell Bowden. (Appendix at pg. 384). There is no 
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indication from Mr. Crawford that any attempt to contact the Respondents was made concerning his 

interactions with one or more dogs maintained by the Blankenships. Id. 

The statement of Kristina Belcher is undated and does not give a timeframe for when the 

subject incidences in her statement occurred. Further, she indicated that she called the "State," not 

the Respondents, two or so times about the black and white pit bull, but does not provide when the 

same occurred. (Appendix at pg. 385). The statement of Dustin Kast is undated and refers only to 

one (1) black and white pit bull known as Echo. (Appendix at pg. 386).Jason Broyles avers in his 

statement that a "dog," not a pit bull as stated by Petitioner in her Brief, snuck up on him. Further, 

despite his statement that a report was filed, no such report exists. (Appendix at pg. 387-388). The 

statements of Ashley Clowers involve one (1) black and white pit bull and do not indicate that the 

same were reported to the Respondents. (Appendix at pg. 389-391). The testimony of Steven 

Crawford was obtained after the incident involving Lowell Bowden and there is no mention of 

previous reports to the Respondents. (Appendix at pg. 415-422). 

Respondent Green has maintained that she was not, however, ever made aware of other pit 

bulls belonging to or being kept by Justin Blankenship at his residence that attacked the decedent 

until the night of the subject attack. (Appendix at pg. 293). Likewise, Respondent Green testified 

that she never received complaints of any dogs, with the exception of Echo, harassing or acting 

aggressively toward anyone. (Appendix at pgs. 285-298, 510-524). When asked about the 

statements discussed at length above, Respondent Green testified that she had never received calls or 

spoken to those persons about their complaints and does not recall any such complaint ever being 

made. (Appendix at pg. 291). 

All of this evidence, and others, were presented to the Circuit Court in Respondents Motion 

for Summary Judgment, the Petitioners Reply, and the oral argument held pursuant to Motion. Upon 
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considering the same, the Circuit Court determined that Respondents had knowledge of "a Pit Bull" 

in the neighborhood sun-ounding the Bowden residence and was never aware of the other dogs 

involved in the subject attack. Further, the Circuit Court acknowledges that the only complaint 

allegedly made by Petitioner was not properly supported as the only evidence to the same was 

Petitioner's own testimony. Based on the record above, the Circuit Court was correct in holding that 

the Petitioner failed to establish, by the totality of the record, that Respondents had knowledge that 

any inaction would lead to the harm suffered by Lowell Bowden. Therefore, the Circuit Court's 

granting of Respondent's Motion for Summary Judgment should be affirmed. 

G. 	 THE CIRCUIT COURT DID NOT ERR IN THAT IT PROPERLY FOUND THAT 
THERE WAS NO CONTACT BETWEEN PETITIONER AND RESPONDENT PRIOR 
TO NOVEMBER 2009. 

Again, as has been discussed and raised in other errors in her Brief, Petitioner asserts that the 

Circuit Court erroneously found that the only evidence submitted by the Petitioner was her own 

testimony and that Petitioner failed to prove direct contact the Respondents and the Petitioner prior to 

the attack on Lowell Bowden. Petitioner then set forth a series of inference that she asserts presents a 

genuine issue of material fact that should have prevented the Circuit Court from granting summary 

judgment in this matter. 

Petitioner states that the Court ignored testimony by the Petitioner in the record regarding her 

knowledge of Respondent Green's uniform and the fact that Respondent Green was accompanied on 

calls when acting as the Dog Warden. Petitioner asserts that this inference could lead a reasonable 

jury to find that the meeting occurred. However, the information presented, for the first time in their 

brief, confirms only that Petitioner has knowledge that most residents of Monroe County who have 

ever seen or interacted with Respondent Green would know. Further, Respondent Green provided 

testimony at the criminal trial of Kim Blankenship, where Petitioner was present, regarding the same. 
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There is no inference can be drawn from that fact that would lead to the detennination that there 

exists a genuine issue ofmaterial fact. 

Petitioner then cites to the Circuit Court's discussion of the testimony of Robert Ludwig. 

However, Petitioner inaccurately describes not only the testimony discussed by the Circuit Court, but 

also the testimony of Robert Ludwig that is part of this record, which is discussed at length below. 

Petitioner then raises, for the first time ever in this case, the relationship between Defendant below 

Justin Blankenship and Linda Ludwig. As these facts are not contained within the record, any 

discussion regarding the same should not be considered now by this Court. Interestingly enough, 

Petitioner appears to contradict herself in stating that Linda Ludwig testified that a person in an 

animal control vehicle was "called to this address," but then correctly states her testimony that the 

person stated that he was called to the Blankenship address. Contrary to the Petitioners assertion, the 

confusion as to the location of the Blankenship residence actually supports the Respondent Green 

had never been to the Bowden residence. 

Finally, Petitioner urges the Court to assume that Respondent Green telephone call to the 

Blankenship residence on November 4, 2009, is proof that she had contact with the Petitioner. 

However, the report referenced by the Petitioner only states that Respondent Green called Justin 

Blankenship on November 4, 2009, about the black and white pit bull. There is no infonnation 

therein, or anywhere in the record, regarding why the call was made. Additionally, Respondent 

Green has maintained, as discussed at length below, that she never had any contact or complaints 

from the Petitioner or her decedent, Lowell Bowden. 

As discussed throughout Respondent's Brief, this Court has announced the following with 

respect to summary judgment: 

[A] genuine issue does not arise unless there is sufficient evidence favoring the non
moving party for a reasonable jury to return a verdict for that party. The opposing 
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half ofa trial-worthy issue is present where the non-moving party can point to one or 
more disputed 'material' facts. A material fact is one that has the capacity to sway the 
outcome ofthe litigation under the applicable law. 

Syllabus Point 5 ofJividen v. Law, 194 W.Va. 705,461 S.E.2d 451 (1995) 

"The evidence illustrating the factual controversy cannot be conjectural." Williams v. 

Precision Coil, Inc., ]94 W.Va. 52, 60, 459 S.E.2d 329, 337 (1995). Moreover, "[s]e1f-serving 

assertions without factual support in the record will not defeat a motion for summary judgment." Id. 

at 61, n. 14, 459 S.E.2d at 338, n. 14. Likewise, a nonmoving party cannot resist a motion for 

summary judgment by simply relying upon claims or defenses set forth in its pleadings. In Crain v. 

Lightner, this Court explained the following: 

When a motion for summary judgment is made and supported as provided in this 
rule, an adverse party may not rest upon the mere allegations or denials of his 
pleading, but his response, by affidavits or as otherwise provided in this rule, must set 
forth specific facts showing that there is a genuine issue for trial. If he does not so 
respond, summary judgment, if appropriate, shall be entered against him. 

Crain v. Lightner, 178 W.Va. 765, 768, 364 S.E.2d 778, 781 (1987). 

The overwhelming weight of the record, however, does not support that this meeting between 

Petitioner and Respondent never took place. Respondent Green testified as follows: 

Okay. Did you know Lowell Bowden before this event? Like did you see in around 
town? 

A: No, sir. 
Q: Did you know his wife Dreama Bowden? 
A: No, sir. 
Q: Do you know a Robert Ludwig? 
A: No, sir. 
Q: Do you know Brian Ludwig? 
A: No. 
Q: Do you recall speaking to Brian Ludwig on the phone, a call from a 

gentleman reporting pit bulls attacking a horse? 
A: No, I don't remember that. 
Q: Do you recall 911 ever contacting you to get in touch with a gentlemen 

calling to report pit bulls attacking a horse? 
A: No. 
Q: Okay. Did you ever visit the Bowden home in response to a complaint raised 
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by a member of the Bowden family? 
A: 	 No, 1 do not. 

Q: 	 And if Dreama Bowden testifies under oath that a family complained about 
these pit bulls and that you visited their home, you don't think she's correct 
about that? 

A: 	 I know I never was at her home. 
Q: 	 Were you ever in her driveway? 
A: 	 Not that I remember, I wasn't. 

Q: 	 Okay. Do you recall ever receiving a complaint from any family member of 
the Bowden family about the Blankenship pit bull? 

A: 	 No, I do not. 

Q: 	 Have you ever told anyone, Bowden's or otherwise, that complained about 
the pit bulls at the Blankenship home that you would take care of it? 

A: No, I did not, because I did not know the pit bulls were on the property. 

(Appendix at 291-292,353-354). Respondent Green has also testified that, contrary to the testimony 

of the Petitioner, she never spoke to the Petitioner over the telephone and, in fact, the only time she 

ever saw Petitioner was during the criminal trial of Kimberly Blankenship. Id. This same exact 

testimony was given by Defendant Green during the criminal trial of Kimberly Blankenship. 

(Appendix at pg. 510-525). During that testimony under oath, she denied having ever spoken to the 

Bowdens, being at their residence, or receiving any complaints about any pit bulls, with the 

exception of Echo. Id. Additionally, Respondent Green's written statements and records generated 

around the time of the incident involving Lowell Bowden do not make reference or discuss any such 

meeting. (Appendix at pg. 299-302, 435-440). 

Robert Ludwig testified that he never spoke to Defendant Green and does not recall any 

interaction between Respondent Green and the Petitioner. (Appendix at pg. 303-314). Petitioner is 

correct in that there was an occasion where the Animal Control vehicle was on the Ludwig property, 

but, according to the testimony of Linda Ludwig, the same was a brief interaction between Linda 

Ludwig and the unidentified person wherein directions to the Blankenship residence were provided 
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as it was stated by the person in the vehicle that they were looking for the same. (Appendix at pg. 

3] 5-320). Further, both Linda Ludwig and Robert Ludwig, kin to and neighbors of the Petitioner, 

denied ever hearing Petitioner, or her late husband, indicate that any interaction ever occurred 

between Petitioner and Animal Control, namely Defendant Green. . (Appendix at pg. 303-320). 

Upon reviewing the brief associated with Respondent's Motion for Summary Judgment and 

after careful consideration of the arguments made during oral argument, the Circuit Court corrected 

ruled that Petitioner failed to properly support her self-serving assertion that the meeting took place. 

In reaching its conclusion, the Circuit Court cited the same testimony discussed above regarding 

Petitioner, Respondent Green, and the Ludwigs. The Circuit Court ruled that the Petitioner failed to 

properly rehabilitate the evidence attacked by the Respondent and failed to demonstrate a genuine 

issue for trial, and in doing points out that Petitioner's own testimony is disputed by at least three (3) 

other persons. As such, without anything more than Petitioner's self-serving assertion that the 

meeting took place which was raised only after the original Motion to Dismiss was filed in this 

matter, the Circuit Court properly ruled that the Petitioner failed to demonstrate that the subject 

meeting ever took place. Therefore, the Circuit Court's granting of Respondent's Motion for 

Summary Judgment should be affirmed. 

H. THE CIRCUIT COURT DID NOT ERR IN ENTERING ITS DISMISSAL ORDER. 

Petitioner is correct in her statement regarding the alleged violations of West Virginia Code § 

29b-l-l, et seq., and the United States Freedom of Information Act ("FOIA") § 5 USC 552(a)(3). The 

same were not addressed at the summary judgment state by any party to this matter, including the Circuit 

Court of Monroe County in its Order granting summary judgment. However, it is the position of the 

Respondent that this claim for damages, which is limited to attorney's feess, is moot and should not be 

5 Any person who is denied access to public records requested pursuant to this article and who successfully brings a 
suit filed pursuant to section five of this article shall be entitled to recover his or her attorney fees and court costs 
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the subject to a reversal in this matter on these grounds. 

Pursuant to the Petitioner's Complaint as well as Petitioner's Amended Complaint, Petitioner 

asserts that a FOIA request was sent to Respondent Monroe County Commission for public records 

associated with the actions of the Respondents in their investigation of the events surrounding the death 

of Lowell Bowden. However, as also outlined in the Petitioner's Complaint as well as Petitioner's 

Amended Complaint, suit was brought for the recovery of damages resulting from the death of Lowell 

Bowden, not due to the failure of the Respondents to respond to the FOIA request. During the pendency 

of the underlying matter, the infonnation sought by the Petitioner was provided during written 

discovery, albeit not within the time frame set forth by West Virginia Code § 29b-I-I. As such, the 

claim was concluded at the time Respondents provided the requested infonnation and reversal on these 

grounds alone would not be proper. 

With respect to the claims for punitive damages, the Circuit Court ruled that, as a result of the 

application of the immunity afforded to the Respondents under West Virginia Code § 29-12A-l et seq., 

the Respondents are immune from punitive damages in this matter. The record in this case, as stated 

by the Circuit Court, is without sufficient evidence to support an award for punitive damages for 

Respondent Green in her individual capacity. 

Finally, with respect to the claims filed by the Petitioner against Defendants below Anna 

Hughes and Mose Christian, the Respondent states that the same does not apply to the Respondents 

and, as such, does not require a response. However, in an effort to avoid waiving our right to 

respond to Petitioner's assignment of error, Respondent maintains that a reversal of this matter on 

these grounds alone would be improper. 

From a review of the Certified Monroe County Circuit Court Docket Record, it does not 

appear that the Defendants below Anna Hughes and Mose Christian were ever properly served with a 

from the public body that denied him or her access to the records. W. Va. Code Ann. § 29B-1-7. 
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copy of the Summons and Complaint when the same was originally filed, nor does it appear that they 

were served following the filing of Petitioner's Amended Complaint. (Appendix at pg. 873-580). 

Furthermore, Petitioner's sole focus during the pendency of the underlying case was the alleged 

liability of the Respondents, not Defendants below Anna Hughes and Mose Christian. There was no 

discovery conducted by the Petitioners regarding the liability of the Defendants below Anna Hughes 

and Mose Christian, nor was there any attempt to seek default judgment against the same. As such, it 

would appear that Petitioner had abandoned their pursuant ofclaims Defendants below Anna Hughes 

and Mose Christian and should not be allowed to pursue the same now. As a result, the circuit 

court's granting of Respondent's Motion for Summary Judgment and its entry of the Dismissal Order 

should be affirmed. 

CONCLUSION AND PRAYER FOR RELIEF

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